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TO THE MEMBERS OF GR AMRITSAR BATHINDA HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of GR AMRITSAR 
BATHINDA HI GHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise the balance 
sheet as at 31st March 2024, the s tatement of Profit and Loss, statement of changes in 
equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone 
Finan cial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanato ry information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the 
Act in the manner so required an d give a true and fafr view in conformity with t he 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as 
at March 31, 2024, its profi t, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on 
that date. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) issued by 
ICAJ and specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Ou r responsibilities 
und er those Standards are further described Ln the Au ditor's Responsibilities fo r the Audit 
of the Standal one Fi nan ci al Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 
of the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical respons ibilities in 
accordance w ith these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report 
Thereon 
The company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not 
include the Standalone Financial Statemer.ts and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information 
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is 
to read the other information an d, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
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Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these Standalone 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including th~ Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frattds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of a ppropriate a ccounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate interna l fi nancial controls, that were operating effectively 
fo r ensuri ng the accuracy a nd completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for 
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial 
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these Standalone Financial Statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial 
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in 
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 
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• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 
report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to c.ease to continue as a going 
concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone 
Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone 
Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner 
that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, we give in Annexure - I a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement 
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply, in material 
respect, with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 
March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
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disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
otlT separate Report in Annexure II. 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us: 

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have a 
material impact its financial position; 

ii) Based on the assessment made by the company, there are no material 
foreseeable losses on its long term contracts that may require any provisioning 

iii) In view of there being no amounts required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund for the year under audit, the reporting under 
this clause is not applicable. 

iv) a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief and, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities 
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any gu·arantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, no funds have been received by the company from any persons or 
entities, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

c) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered 
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our 
notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause 
(a) and (b) contain any material misstatement. 

v) No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company. 
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we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered 
with. 

vii) As proviso to Rule 3(B of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable 
from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule ll(g) of the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory 
requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended 
March 31, 2024. 

Udaipur, May 10, 2024 
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Annexure - I to the Independent Auditm.·s Report 
Referred to in our report of even date, to the members of GR AMRITSAR BATHINDA 
HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED for the year ended March 31, 2024 

i) (a) According to the information and explanations provided to us, there are no 
fixed assets in existence with company. 

(b) According to the information and explanations provided to us, there are no 
immovable properties included in the fixed assets of the company and accordingly 
the reporting requirements under sub clause (c) of clause (i) of paragraph 3 of the 
order are not applicable. 

ii) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company has sub-contracted the entire construction / operation related activities 
and therefore does not carry any inventories. Hence, the reporting requirements 
under clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

iii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the 
company has not granted any loans, secure·d or unsecured to companies, firms, 
Limited Liability Partnership or other parties covered in the register maintained 
under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, the reporting 
requirements under sub-clause (a), (b) and (c) of Clause (iii) of paragraph 3 of the 
order are not applicable. 

iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there 
are no loans, investments, guarantees and securities granted in respect of which 
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable and hence the reporting 
requirements under clause (iv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company has not accepted any deposits during the period under audit. 
Consequently, the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of 
sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed thereunder are not applicable. 

vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government 
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act for the company. The same is not 
applicable to the company. 

vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the 
records of the company examined by us, the company is generally regular in 
depositing the undisputed statutory dues including income-tax, goods and service 
tax, duty of customs, cess and any other material statutory dues, as applicable, with 
the appropriate authorities in India. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed 
amounts in respect of the aforesaid statutory dues which in arrears as at March 31, 
2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 
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(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no 
applicable statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any 
dispute. 

viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or 
disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of 
account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during 
the year. 

ix) Based upon the audit procedures carried out by us and on the basis of information 
and explanations provided by the management we are of the opinion that the 
company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks / Financial Institutions. 
The company does not have any borrowings from government or Debenture 
Holders. 

x) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
term loans taken by the company have been ultimately utili~ed for the purpose for 
which they were taken. 

xi) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further 
public offer (including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order 
is not applicable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any 
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible 
debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

xii) Based on the audit procedures performed by us for the purpose of reporting the 
true and fair view of the Standalone Financial Statements and as per the 
information and explanations given to us by the management, we report that we 
have neither come across any instance of fraud by the company or on the company 
by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been 
informed of any such case by the management. 

xiii) The company is not a Nidhi Company and hence the reporting requirements under 
clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. 

xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered 
into by the company with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 
188 of the Act where applicable and the details thereof have been disclosed in the 
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

xv) Based on the information and explanations provided to us and our audit 
procedures, the Company does not have an internal audit system as it is not 
applicable considering its size and nature of business. Consequently, there are no 
internal audit reports to be considered for the period under audit. 

xvi) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately 
preceding financial year. 
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xvii] There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. 
Accordingly, clause 3(xviii] of the Order is not applicable. 

xviii] According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the 
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone 
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management 
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, 
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when 
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, 
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We 
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit 
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities 
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get 
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due. 

xix] As per the information and explanations provided to us, the company has not 
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with 
them. 

xx] In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
company is not required to be registered under Section 45 - IA of the Reserve Bank 
of India, 1934. 

xxi] In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there 
is no unspent amount under sub-section (SJ of section 135 of the Act pursuant to 
any project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx](a] and 3(xx](b] of the Order are not 
applicable. 

For JLN US & Company 
Chartered Accountants 

'\\\~ 
CAM~) Menaria 
Partner 
M No. 400828 
UDIN: 24400828BKACIA6184 

Udaipur, May 10, 2024 
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Annexure - II to the Independent Auditars Report 

Referred to in our report of even date, to the members of GR AMRITSAR BATHINDA 
HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GR AMRITSAR 
BATHINDA HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2024 in 
conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the 
year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial 
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over 
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of 
Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on 
the Standalone Financial Statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. 

For JLN US & Company 
Chartered Accountants Fw. 
CA Mahesh Menaria 
Partner 

Udaipur, May 10, 2024 
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Balance Sheet 
as at 31 March 2024 

Particulars 

Assets 
Non-current assets 
(a) Tax Assets 
(b) Deferred tax Assets (net) 
Total non-current assets 

Current assets 
(a) Financial assets 

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 
(b) Other assets 
Total current assets 

Total assets 

Equity and liabilities 
Equity 
(a) Equity share capital 
(b) Other equity 
(c) Instruments Entirely Equity In Nature 
Total equity 

Liabilities 
Non-current liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 
Total non-current liabilities 

Current liabilities 
(a) Financial liabilities 

(i) Trade payables - total outstanding dues of 
(a) micro enterprises and sma11 enterprises 
(bl creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

(ii) Other financial liabilities 
(b) Other current liabilities 

Total current liabilities 
Total liabilities 

Total equity and liabilities 

Basis of preparation, measurement and material accounting policies 
Notes to financial statements 

The notes referred above are an integral part of these standalone financial statements 

Ref Note No. 

4 
20 

6 

7 
8 
9 

10 
20 

11 

12 
13 

2-3 
4-32 

Asat 
31 March 2024 

11520 

115.20 

3,20147 
lS.!0-1..66 
16,406.13 

16,521.33 

2,315 00 
3,060.86 
4,119.36 
9,495.22 

5.00 
l,029.51 
1,034.51 

018 
5,874.65 

035 
116.42 

5,991 .60 
7,026.11 

16.521.33 

<in Lakhs 

Asat 
31 March 2023 

40.02 
5.03 

45.05 

0.40 
2,532.31 
2.532.91 

2,571.96 

1.00 
(14.95) 

(13.95) 

259.53 

259.53 

0.10 
2,14621 

186.07 
l,332.38 
2,591.91 

2.577.96 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

As per our report of even date 

Partner 
M. No. 400828 
Place: Udaipur 
Date: May 10, 2024 

~ 
Sudbir Mutha 
Director 
DIN: 02422911 
Place: Udaipur 
Date : May 10, 2024 

Vishal Sen 
Campany Secretary 
!CS! Memb. No. A52392 
Place: Udaipur 
Date : May 10, 2024 

Directar 
DIN: 02791023 

Place: Gurugram 
Date: May 10, 2024 

~~ 
Prerana Porwal 

CFO&CEO 

Place: U daipur 
Date: May 10, 2024 



GR AMRITSAR BATHINDA HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN U45203RJ2021PTC077436 
Statement of Profit and Loss 
for the year ended 31 March 2024 

Particulars 

Income 
Revenue from operations 

Other income 
Total income 
Expenses 

Gvil construction costs 
Employee benefits expense 
Finance costs 
Other expenses 

Total expenses 
Profit before tax 
Tax expense: 

Current tax 
Adjustment of income tax related to earlier periods 
Deferred tax (credit)/ charge 

Profit for the year/ period 

Other comprehensive income 
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss 
Re-measurements of defined benefit liability/ (asset) 
Income tax relating to above 

Other comprehensive income for the year/ period, net of tax 

Total comprehensive income for the year/ period 

Earnings per share 
(Nominal value of share Rs.10 each) 

Basic (Rs.) 
Diluted IRs.) 

Basis of preparation, measurement and material accounting policies 
Notes to financial statements 

Ref Nole No. 

14 
15 

16 
17 
18 
19 

20 

28 
28 

2-3 
4-32 

The notes referred above are an integral part of these standalone financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

Fur Lhe year ended 
31 March 2024 

20,104.01 
147.72 

20,251.73 

15,879.44 
169 
622 

253.63 
16.140.98 

4,110.75 

0.40 

1,034.54 
1,034.94 
3,075.81 

3,075.81 

23.10 
23.10 

'fin Lnklzs 
For the year ended 

31 March 2023 

2,122.47 

2,122.47 

2,030.07 

18.59 
92.39 

2,141.05 
(18.58) 

14.68) 
(4.68) 

(13.90) 

(13.90) 

(139.00) 
1139.00} 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

For JIN US AND COMPANY 

~ @VP 
Sudhir Mutha Anand Rathi 

Partner 
M. No. 400828 
Place: Udaipur 

Date : May 10, 2024 

Director 

DIN: 02422911 
Place: Udaipur 
Date : May 10, 2024 

~ ~ 
Company SecretanJ 
ICSI Memb. No. A52392 
Place: Udaipur 

Date : May 10, 2024 

Director 

DIN: 02791023 
Place: Gurugram 

Date : May 10, 2024 

CFO&CEO 

Place: Udaipur 

Date : May 10, 2024 



GR AMRITSAR BATHINDA HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN U45203RJ2021PTC077436 
Statement of Changes in Equity 
for the year ended 31 March 2024 

A. Equity Share Capital 

Particulars 
Ba.lance as at commencement or the period 
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period errors 
Changes in equitv share capital durim: the period 
B•lance a.oat 31 March 2023 
Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prmrµerlod errors 
Changl'S in squilv shart! capital during !he: vcar 
Balance as at 31 March 2024 

B. Other Equity 

Particulars 

Balance as at 1 April 2022 
Profit for the pe:rio\l 

Total com rdu.!: nsi"r income (or the_ -·ear 
• ance as at.ll Mar 2 23 

Balance as at 1 April 2023 
Profit for the period 

Basis of preparation, measurement and material accounting policies 
Notes to financial statements 

The notes referred above are an integral part of these standalone financial statements 

As per our report of as on date 

2 - 3 
4 - 32 

For JLN US AND COMPANY 
Chartered Accountants 

s~ 

~/-
CA Mahesh Menaria 
Partner 
M. No. 400828 
Place: Udaipur 
Date: May 10, 2024 

Director 

DIN: 02422911 
Place: Udaipur 
Date: May 10, 2024 

Visha!Sen 
Company Secretary 
ICSI Memb. No. A52392 
Place: Udaipur 
Date : May 10, 2024 

Number of shares 
10,000 

10,000 

2,31,40,000 
2,31,50,000 

Retained 
Ermin s 

[l.05) 
(13.90) 
13.90 
(H.95) 

3,075.81 
3,075.81 
3,060.86 

Amount 

1 .00 

1.00 

2,314.00 
2,315.00 

l in Lakl1$ 

Total 
Othere ui 

(l.05) 
(13.90) 
(13.90) 
{14 .95) 

3,075.81 
3,0?5.81 
3,060.86 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directal>i 

~ 
Director 

DIN: 02791023 
Place: Guru)!;ram 

Date: May 10, 2024 

Prerana Porwal 
CFO&CEO 

Place: Udaipur 
Date : May 10, 2024 



GR AMRITSAR BATHINDA HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN U45203RJ2021PTC077436 
Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year ended 31 March 2024 

Particulars 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Profit before tax 
Adjustments for: 

Finance income 
Finance costs 

Working capital adjustments: 
(Increase) in financial and non-financial assets 
lncrease in trade payables 
(Decrease)/ Increase in other current liabilities 

Cash (used in) operating activities 
Income tax paid (net) 
Net cash (used in) operating activities (A) 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Interest received 

Net cash generated from investing activities (B) 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Interest paid 
Proceeds from issue of share capital 
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 
Repayment of non-current borrowings 
Proceeds from Equity portion by perpetual debts 

Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Notes: 

1. Cash and cash equivalents comprises o( (refer note 5) 

Particulars 

2. Cash and cash equivalents comprises of : 
Balances with banks: 

- Current accounts 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 

Ref Note No. 

Ref Note No. 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

4,110.75 

(3,963.24) 
6.21 

153.72 

(6,708.91) 
3,728.52 

(69.30) 
(2,895.97) 

(75.58) 
(2,971.55) 

(6,21) 
2,314 .00 

5,00 
(259.53) 

4,119.36 
6,172.62 

3,201.07 
0.40 

3,201.47 

For the year ended 
31 March 2024 

3,201.47 
3,201.47 

'fin Lakhs 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

(18 58) 

18 58 

(2,414.77) 
2,14219 

185.87 
(86.71) 
(40.02) 

(126.73) 

(1.85) 

128.34 

126.49 

(0.24) 
0.64 
0.40 

'f i11 Lakhs 

For the year ended 
31 March 2023 

0.40 
0.40 



GR AMRITSAR BATHINDA HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN U45203RJ2021PTC077436 
Statement of Cash Flows 
for the year ended 31 March 2024 

Notes: (continued) 

3. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities in terms of Ind AS 7: <in Lakhs 
~~~Af.,--a-t~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~----,~~~~ 

Netci3shflow Others Asat 
1 April 2023 31 March 2024 

Non-current borrowings/ perpetual debt 259.53 (260.74) 6.22 5.00 
259.53 (260.74) 6.22 5.00 

Others Al; at 
31 March 2023 

Asat 
1 April2022 

Net cash flow 

Non-current borrowings 114.46 126.49 18.58 259.53 
18.58 259.53 Total~~~~~=1=1=4=.4=6~~~~~=1=2=6.=49~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~=== 

4 Figures in brackets represent outflows. 

Basis of prepfilation, measurement and material accounting policies 
Notes to financial statements 

The notes referred above are an integral part of these standalone financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

For JLN US AND COMPANY 
0111rtered AccountQnts 
Firm's Reg. No. 101543W 

\YI· 
CA Mah~sh Menaria 
Par Iner 
M. No. 400828 
Place: Udaipur 
Date : May 10, 2024 

2-3 
4-32 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

s~ ~' 
Director 

DIN: 02422911 
Place: Udaipur 
Date : May 10, 2024 

~ 
Vishal Sen 
Company Secretary 
JCS! Mernb. No. A52392 
Place: Udaipur 
Date : May 10, 2024 

Director 
DIN: 02791023 

Place: Gurugram 
Date : May 10, 2024 

~~ 
CFO&CEO 

Place: Udaipur 
Date : May 10, 2024 



GR A1nritsar Bathinda Highway Private Limited 
N ates to the financial statements 
for the year ended 31 Morch 2024 

1. Reporting entity 

GR Amritsar Bathinda Highway Private Limited ('the Company') having Registered office at GR House, Hiran 
Magri, Sector 11, Udaipur, Rajasthan, 313002 was incorporated in Udaipur Rajasthan, India on October 07, 2021 as a 
Private limited company under the Companies Act, 2013 (the' Act') as a subsidiary of G R Infraprojects Limited. 

The Company is formed as a special purpose vehicle (SPV) to design, build, operate and transfer basis, ("DBOT 
Annuity"or " Hybrid Annuity ") the project relating to Construction of Development of six-lane Amritsar-Bathinda 
Greenfield Section on NH-754A from village Tiba on NE-SA to Junction with Moga-Jalandhar Road (NH-703) near 
Dharamkot (from km 0+000 to km 39+000) as part of Amritsar-Jamanagar Economic Corridor in the State of Punjab 
on Hybrid Annuity Mode. The company has entered into concession agreement with the National Highway 
Authority of India ("NHAI") dated 14th December, 2021. 

The Financial Statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors on 10 May 
2024. 

2. Basis of preparation 

a. Statement of compliance 

These Standalone financial statements are comprise of the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the 
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the 
Standalone Statement of Changes in Shareholders' Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flow for the 
year then ended and a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory notes (collectively, the 
"Standalone Financial Statements") prepared in accordance with applicable provision of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the 'Act') and presentation requirements of Division 
II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the financial 
statements. The Company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a 
going concern 

Details of the Company's material accounting policies are included in Note 3. 

b. Functional and presentation currency 

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is also the Company's functional 
currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated. 

c. Basis of measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost using accrual basis of accounting except 
certain financial instruments measured at fair values. 

d. Material accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying 
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could 
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in 
future periods. 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, 
that have a material risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within 
the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters 
available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future 
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that ar~e e , ~ltJib1'M ol 
of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assum tions when they occur. ~f;;)%~ 
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GR Amritsar Bathinda Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 Mnrch 2024 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised prospectively. 

The following are the material judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the directors have made 
in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies and that have the most material effect on the 
amounts recognised in the financial statement. 

i. Revenue recognition: 

Revenue recognition from construction contracts involves material degree of judgements and estimation 
such as identification of contractual obligations, measurement and recognition of contract assets, change of 
scope and determination of onerous contract which include estimation of contract costs. 

ii. Other material assumptions and estimation: 

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other estimation and assumption at the 
end of the reporting period that may have a material risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year 

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties 

Fair value measurement 
and valuation process 

Where assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for the financial 
reporting purposes, the Company determines the appropriate valuation 
techniques and inputs for fair value measurements. 

Trade receivable 
contract assets 

Provision 

Tax 

and In assessing the recoverability of the trade receivables and contracts assets, 
management's judgement involves consideration of aging status, evaluation of 
litigations and the likelihood of collection based on the terms of the contract. 

Estimates of provision on matter which under litigation 

Material judgments are required in determining the provision for income taxes, 
including the amount expected to be paid / recovered for uncertain tax 
positions. 



GR Amritsar Bathinda Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31March2024 

3. Material accounting policies 

a. Current versus non-current classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-current classification. An 
asset is current when it is: 

• Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle; 
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
• Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used t-o settle a liability for at least 

twelve months after the reporting period. 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when: 

• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the 

reporting period 

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of 
equity instruments do not affect its classification. 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities 

Operating cycle 

The operating cycle for project is the time from start of the project to their realization in cash or cash equivalents. 
The Company adopted operating cycle based on project period and accordingly all project related assets and 
liabilities are classified into current and non-current. Other than project related assets and liabilities, 12 months 
period is considered as normal operating cycle. 

b. Foreign currency transaction 

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of the Company at the 
exchange rates at the date of the transaction or at an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate 
at the date of the transaction. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at 
the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a 
foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was 
determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency 
are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences are recognised in profit or 
loss. 

c. Financial instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity. 

Financial Assets - Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value 
through other comprehensive income (00), and fair value through profit or loss. 



GR Amritsar Bathinda Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 Mnrcli 2024 

financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not 
contain a material financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are 
measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies of 
Revenue from contracts with customers. 

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it 
needs to give rise to cash flows that are 'solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)' on the principal 
amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. 
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or 
loss, irrespective of the business model. 

The Company's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets 
in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from 
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and 
measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in 
order to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through 
OCI are held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows 
and selling. 

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by 
regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the 
date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

ii Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 

• Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) 
• Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses 

upon derecognition (equity instruments) 
• Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments) 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions are met: 

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash 
flows; and 
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is 
included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the 
profit or loss. The Company's financial assets at amortised cost includes trade receivables, security and 
other deposits, other receivable and loan to an subsidiaries included under other financial assets. 

Financial assets at fair value through Other comprehensive income (FVOCI) (equity instrument) 

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity 
instruments designated at fair value through 00 when they meet the definition of equity under Ind AS 32 
Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an 
instrument-by-instrument basis. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent 
consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are 
classified as at FVTPL. 



GR Amritsar Bathinda Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2024 

The Company elected to classify irrevocably its non-listed equity investments under this category. 

Financial assets at fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL) 

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are measured 
at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may 
irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised 
cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or materially reduces an accounting mismatch that 
would otherwise arise. 

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or 
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or 
loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset. 

iii Derecognition 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when: 

• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
• The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 

obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass­
through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the 
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

Further, the contractual terms of the existing financial assets are substantially modified, such modification 
is treated as the derecognition of original financial asset and the recognition of a new financial asset. Such 
newly recognized financial asset is measured at fair value on initial recognition. The difference in 
respective carrying amount, if any, is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. If the modification of 
a financial asset does not result in its derecognition, then the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is 
recalculated at original effective interest rate and the resulting gain or loss is recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass­
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. 
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor 
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of 
the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated. liability. 
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and 
obligations that the Company has retained. 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the 
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the 
company could be required to repay. 

iv Impairment of financial instruments 

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are 
credit-impaired. A financial asset is ' credit-impaired' when one or more events that have a detrimental 
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. 

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data: 

• 
• 
• 

• 
• 
Ind 

material financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer; 
a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more; 
the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not 
consider otherwise; 
it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or 
the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties. DA IU 

~ ~ 
e 



GR Amritsar Bathinda Highway Private Limited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the yenr ended 31 Mnrch 2024 

and/ or contract assets that do not constitute a financing transaction, For all other financial assets, expected 
credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or at an amount equal 
to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased materially since 
initial recognition. 

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying 
amount of the assets. 

v Financial liabilities - Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as not designated as hedging 
instruments, as appropriate. 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and 
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

vi Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories: 

• Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
• Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings) 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and 
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial 
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near 
term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not 
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded 
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging 
instruments. 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as 
such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities 
designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in 
OCI. These gains/ losses are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer 
the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value 
through profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings) 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are 
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into 
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The 
EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 



GR Amritsar Bathinda Highway Private Liprited 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2024 

vii Derecognition 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. 
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

viii Reclassification of financial assets 

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial 
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets, such as equity instruments designated at FVTPL 
or FVOCI and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made 
only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. 

ix Offsetting 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, 
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends 
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

d. Fair values measurement 

The Company measurement financial instrument, such as derivative, investment and mutual fund at fair values 
at each balance sheet date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the 
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data 
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is material to the fair 
value measurement as a whole: 

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is material to the fair value measurement is 
directly or indirectly observable. 

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is material to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable. 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation 
(based on the lowest level input that is material to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each 
reporting period. 

The Company has an established control framework with respect of fair values. 
reporting team that has overall responsibility for ovei: 
Level 3 fair values. - ' 
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for tire year ended 31 March 2024 

The financial reporting team regularly reviews material unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third 
party information, such as pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the financial reporting team 
assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the 
requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be 
classified. 

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the 
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as 
explained above. 

e. Property, plant and equipment 

i. Recognition and measurement 

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs, 
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

Cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non­
refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of 
bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and 
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. 

The cost of a self-consbucted item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials and 
direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working condition for its intended 
use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. 

If material parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are 
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in statement of profit 
and loss. 

ii. Subsequent expenditure 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with 
the expenditure will flow to the Company. 

iii. Derecognition 

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no 
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The consequential gain or loss is measured as 
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is recognized in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

iv. Depreciation 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on straight line basis over the estimated useful 
lives as prescribed under schedule II of the Act. 

£. Intangible assets 

i. Recognition and measurement 

Intangible assets including those acquired by the Company are initially measured at cost. Such intangible 
assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment 
losses. 

ii. Subsequent expendihlre 
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iii. Derecognition 

The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits 
are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from the Derecognition of an intangible asset is 
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the intangible 
asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised. 

iv. Amortisation 

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of the intangible assets less their estimated residual values 
over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method and is included in depreciation and 
amortisation in financial statement. 

g. Inventories 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows: 

• Raw materials and Construction material: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing 
the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average cost method. 

• Finished good;: cost includes cost includes direct materials, labour, a proportion of manufacturing overheads 
based on normal operating capacity and excise duty. Cost is determined on weighted average cost method. 

• Real estate: Land and building held as real estate inventory is valued at cost or net realizable value 
whichever is lower. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less 
estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

The Company written down inventory where the net realizable value is estimated to be lower than the inventory 
carrying value because of slow or non-moving inventories as per policy consistently followed by the Company. 

h. Impairment of non-financial assets 

The Company assesses at each reporting date, whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such 
indication exists then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an 
individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to disposal and its value in use. The 
recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are 
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU 
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no 
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated 
by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators. 
The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are 
prepared separately for each of the Company's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets 
and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is 
calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable 
amount. Impairment loss are reduce from the carrying amounts of the assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs). 
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i. Employee benefits 

Short-tern1 employee benefits 

All employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short­
term employee benefits. Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are 
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid, if the 
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by 
the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably. 

j. Provisions and contingencies (other than for employee benefits) 

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive 
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation. Provisions are measure based on management's estimate required to settle the obligation 
at the balance sheet date and are discounted the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the 
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. 

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no 
longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is 
reversed. 

Contingencies 

Disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, 
but probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of such 
obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of 
which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision or disclosure is 
made. 

k. Reve11ue from contracts witlt customer 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the 
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange 
for those goods or services. The Company assesses promises in the contract that are separate performance 
obligations to which a portion of transaction price is allocated. 

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price as specified in the contract with the customer. It excludes 
taxes or other amounts collected from customers in its capacity as an agent. 

The accounting policies for the specific revenue streams of the Company as summarized below: 

i. Revenue from Service Concession Arrangement 

Service concession arrangements (SCA) refers to the arrangement between the grantor (a public sector 
entity) and the operator (a private sector entity) to provide service that give the public access to major 
economic and social facilities utilising private sector funds and expertise. 

With respect to the SCA, revenue and cost are allocated between those relating to the construction services 
and those related to the operation and maintenance services, and accounted for separately. 

The Company constructs the infrastructure (road) used to provide a public service and operates and 
maintains that infrastructure for a specified period of time. Under Appendix D to Ind AS 115 - Revenue 
from Contracts with Customers, this arrangement is accounted for based on the nature of the consideration. 
The intangible asset is used to the extent that the Company receives a right to charge the users of the public 
service. The financial asset is used when the Company has an unconditional right to receive cash or another 
financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services. 
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• Construction stream of DBOT revenues are accounted based on the stage of completion of the work 
performed. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to input method 

• O&M income is recognised when it has right to received consideration during the operating phase of 
the DBOT; and 

• Finance income is recognised over a concession period based on the implicit rate of return embedded 
in the projected cash flow. 

Revenue from construction of contracts is recognised by applying percentage of completion method after 
providing for foreseeable losses, if any. percentage of completion method is determined as a proportion of 
the cost incurred up to the reporting date to the total estimated cost to complete. Foreseeable losses, if any 
on the contracts is recognised as expense in the period in which it is foreseen, irrespective of the stage of 
completion of the contract. While determining the amonnt of foreseeable loss, all elements of cost and 
related incidental income not included in contract revenue is taken into consideration. Contract is reflected 
at cost that are expected to be recoverable till such time the outcome of the contract cannot be ascertained 
reliably and at realisable value thereafter. 

ii. Variable consideration 

The nature of the Company's contracts gives rise to several types of variable consideration, including 
claims, bonus, unpriced change orders, award and incentive fees, change in law, liquidated damages and 
penalties. The company estimates the amount of revenue to be recognized on variable consideration using 
the expected value (i.e., the sum of a probability-weighted amount) or the most likely amount method, 
whichever is expected to better predict the amount. 

The Company's claim for extra work, incentives and escalation in rates relating to execution of contracts 
are recognized as revenue in the year in which said claims are finally accepted by the clients. Claims under 
arbitration/ disputes are accounted as income based on final award. Expenses on arbitration are accounted 
as incurred. 

iii. Material financing component 

Generally, the Company receives short-term advances from its customers. Using the practical expedient in 
Ind AS 115, the Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a material 
financing component if it expects, at contract inception, that the period between the transfer of the 
promised good or service to the customer and when the customer pays for that good or service will be one 
year or less. 

iv. Contract modifications 

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the 
contract scope or contract price. The accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether 
the services added to the existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is at the standalone selling 
price. Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch up basis, while those that 
are distinct are accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if additional services are priced at 
the standalone selling price, or as a termination of existing contract and creation of a new contract if not 
priced at the standalone selling price. 

v. Cost to fulfill the contract 

The Company recognises asset from the cost incurred to fulfill the contract such as camp set up and 
mobilisation costs which is amortises it over the contract tenure on a systematic basis that is consistent with 
the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which the asset relates. 

vi. Contract balances 

Contract assets 

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. 
If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays 
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is 
conditional. 
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Trade receivables 

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time 
is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in 
section "Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement". 

Receivable under Service Concession Arrangement 

The Company constructs or upgrades infrastructure (construction or upgrade services) used to provide a 
public service and operates and maintains that infrastructure (operation services) for a specified period of 
time. These arrangements may include infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession 
arrangement for its entire useful life. 

The Company recognises the considerations given by the grantor or other government bodies in 
accordance with Appendix C-'Service Concession Arrangements' of Ind AS 115- 'Revenue from Contracts 
with Customers'. The Company classifies the Contract Asset as financial asset to the extent that it has an 
unconditional contractual right to receive cash. As per Service Concession Arrangement the financial assets 
needs to be recognised in accordance with Ind AS 109. Ind AS 109 requires a financial asset to be measured 
at its fair value and any difference between the initial measurement of the financial asset in accordance 
with Ind AS 109 and the contract asset recognised under Ind AS 115 to be presented as an expense. 

Contract liabilities 

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has 
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays 
consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is 
recognised when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are 
recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract. 

1. Leases 

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or 
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in 
exchange for consideration. 

1. Company as a lessee 

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases 
and leases of low-value assets. 

Lease term which is a non-cancellable period together with periods covered by an option to extend the lease if 
the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the 
lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. The Company uses judgement in assessing 
the lease term (including anticipated renewals/termination options). 

The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to 
use the underlying assets. 

Right of use of Assets 

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date (i.e., the date 
the underlying asset is available for use). The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the 
initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, 
plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to 
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. 
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Lease liabilities 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the 
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined. After the commencement date, 
lease liability is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payment made. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprises of fixed payments, including in­
substance fixed payments, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and the exercise 
price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional 
renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option. 

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Modifications to a lease 
agreement beyond the original terms and conditions are generally accounted for as a re-measurement of the 
lease liability with a corresponding adjustment to the ROU asset. Any gain or loss on modification is recognized 
in the Statement of Profit & Loss. However, the modifications that increase the scope of the lease by adding the 
right to use one or more underlying assets at a price commensurate with the stand-alone selling price are 
accounted for as a separate new lease. In case of lease modifications, discounting rates used for measurement of 
lease liability and ROU assets is also suitably adjusted. 

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases of all the 
assets that have a lease term of twelve months or less with no purchase option and leases for which the 
underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expense 
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

ll. Company as a lessor 

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of 
an asset is classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the 
lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying 
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. 

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from 
the Company to the lessee. 

m. Recognition of interest income or expense, Insurance claim received 

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method. 

The 'effective interest rate' is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through 
the expected life of the financial instrument to: 

the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or 
the amortised cost of the financial liability. 
Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted/ expected to be admitted and to the 
extent that there is no uncertainty in receiving the claims. 

n. Income tax 

Income tax comprises of current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except to the 
extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in OCI. 

Current tax 
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ii Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or 
the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting 
date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in 
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and 
liabilities. 

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. 
Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against which they can be used. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. 
The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. 
Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent 
that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient 
taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets -
unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent 
that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities 
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on 
different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets 
and liabilities will be realised simultaneously. 

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised 
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. 

o. Borrowing cost 

Borrowing costs are interest and other incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs 
directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time 
to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are 
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

p. Earnings per Share 

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the equity 
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is 
adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have changed 
the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the 
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

In a capitalisation or bonus issue or a share split, ordinary shares are issued to existing shareholders for no 
additional consideration. The number of ordinary shares outstanding before the event is adjusted for the 
proportionate change in the number of ordinary shares outstanding as if the event had occurred at the beginning 
of the earliest period presented 

q. Segments Reporting 
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r. Caslt and caslt equivalents 

Cash and Cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash, drafts and cheques in hand, 
bank balances, unencumbered demand deposits with banks where the original maturity is three months or less 
and other short term highly liquid investments. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an 
integral part of the Company's cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalent for 
the purpose of Cash Flow Statement. 

"Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profits/ (Loss) before tax is adjusted for effects 
of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments and 
item of exp~nses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and 
financing activities of the company are segregated." 

s. Changes in accounting policies and disclosures 

i. New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments adopted by the Company 

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the standalone financial statements are consistent 
except for amendments to the existing Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS). 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment 
Rules, 2023 dated 31 March 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 April 2023. The Company applied for the first-time these amendments. 

Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8 

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates, changes in accounting 
policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and 
inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments had no impact on the Company's Standalone 
financial statements. 

Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1 

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by 
replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their 'significant' accounting policies with a requirement to 
disclose their 'material' accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of 
materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures. The amendments have had an impact 
on the Company's disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement, recognition or 
presentation of any items in the Company's standalone financial statements. 

Apart from these, consequential amendments and editorials have been made to other Ind AS like Ind AS 
101, Ind AS 102, Ind AS 103, Ind AS 107, Ind AS 109, Ind AS 115 and Ind AS 34. 

ii. Standards notified but not yet effective 

There are no new standards that are notified, but not yet effective, upto the date of issuance of the 
Company's standalone financial statements. 
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4 Tax Assets 

Particulars 

Advance income tax (net of provision) 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars 

Balance with b;ink5 
in current accounts 

6 Other assets (Unsecured, Considered Good) 

Particulars 

Current 
Contract assets 
Unamortised loan processing fee 
Advance to Suppliers for Goods or Services 
Prepaid expenses 
Mobilisa tion advances given to GR Infra projects Limited (Parent Company) 

Balance with government authorities 
GST Receivable - GST IDS 
GST Receivable 

Ref Note No. 

Ref Note No. 

Ref Note No. 

26 

As at 
31 March 2024 

115.20 
115.20 

As at 
31 March 2024 

3,201.47 

3,201.47 

As at 
31March2024 

8,958.14 
180.78 

0.01 
9.16 

2,782.57 

265.77 
1,008.23 

1;:;,20~.66 

tin Laklts 

Asat 
31 March 2023 

40.02 
40.02 

(in Laklis 

As at 
31 Ma c<h 2023 

040 

0.40 

<in Lnklis 

As at 
31 March 2023 

2,392.53 
90.50 

O.Dl 
9.45 

40.02 

2,532S1 
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Equity Share capita] 

Particulars 

Au,horiscd 

2,31,.50,000 (31 March 2023: 10,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 

Issued, subscribed and paid up 
2,31,.30,000 (31 March 2023: 10,000) equity shares of Rs, 10 each 

Reconciliation of equity share outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period . 

Pa:rticuJ.11·1 

At the commencement of the period 

Add: lssued during the period 

At the end of the period 

Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company 

Particulars 

Equity share of Rs ro t.'3<-h fully paid-up held by 

GR Infraprojccts. Limited (Parent Company) 

+includes 10 equity shares are held by nominee of GR lnfraprofects Llmited 

Particulars of Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 

Promoter name 

GR Tnfraprojects limited 

Terms&: Rights attached to equity shares: 

No.of 
Shares 

2,31,50,000 00 

31 March 2024 

11/nof total 
shares 

100,00 

-31 March 2£12~ 

Numbers 

10,000 

2,31,40,000 
2,31,50,000 

Amount 

1 .00 

2,314 00 
2,315 00 

31 March 2024 

Numbers % of total share in 

2,31,50,000 

%Change 
during the: year 

99 96 

dass 

100 00 

No.of 
Shares 

10,000 00 

As at 
31 March 2024 

2,315 00 

2.315 00 

2,315 00 

2,315.00 

<in l.nkhs 
As at 

31March2023 

1.00 

l.llO 

1.00 

1.00 

31 M.i!rch 2023 

Numbers Amount 

10,000 100 

10,000 1 00 

31 March 2023 

Numbt-rs 

10,000 

31 March 2023 

%oftota.1 
shares 

100 00 

% of total share 
indass 

100 00 

% Change dwing 
the year 

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company's residual assets. The equity shares 
are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not on show of hands) are in proportion to its share of the paid-up 
equity capital of the Company Voting rights cannot be exercised in respec;t of shares on which any call or other sums presently payable have not been paid. Failure to pay any amount 
called up on shares may lead to forfeiture of the shares. 

On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining after distribution of all preforential amow:1ts in 
proportion to the number of equity shares held. 

Other equity 

Particulars 

8abnt't as at l April 2022 
Profit for the period 

Total comprehensive income for the year 

Balance as at 31 March 2023 

Balance as at 1 April 2023 

Profit for the y~.11r 

Tot.ti compn:hcnsive lncom~ for lhc year 

Instruments CTitirdy t!!QU'it)' in nature 
Perpetual debt (Interest free) 

Polrticullri 

Opniinp; 8;:ib,na!! as at commencement of the period 
Addition during the year 

Re d 

Note:-

Retained 
Ea min 

(13.90) 

(14.95) 

(14.95) 

.>,075-51 
3,060.86 

( i11 Lakhs 

Equity portion by 
Total 

tu1.l debts 
(l.OS) 

(13.90) 

(13.90) 

(14.95) 

(14.95) 

3.IY7S.Sl 
3.060.86 

t mbk11.$ 
Asat A.,t 

11 h-Un.h 2024 31March W23 

4,119.36 

Ul.9.36 

The company has received interest free loans in the nature of perpetual debt from its Pa.rent Company, which are repayable at the discretion of the Company as per the lerm of Joan 
agreement. The Holding Company has residual interest in the asset after payment of a11 liabi1ities of the Company. The fund has been advanced for the business need of the company. 
The Company has classified the said loans as equity in accordance with Ind AS - 32 'Financial Instruments Presentation'. 
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10 Non current borrowings 

r .ubcubrs 

Loans from banks - Secured 
Term loan - Indian rupees 

Loans from others - Unsecured 

Term loan - Indian rupees 

Total 

Non-Cwrent portion of long tenn borrowings 

Current maturities of long term borrowings 

Notes: 

Debt Covenants: 

tin l...iJ.~lrs 

ndNoteNo. As at As at 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

5.00 
5.00 

259.53 
259.53 

5.00 25953 

5.00 25953 

5.00 259,53 

The Company has satisfied aU the debts covenants prescribed in the terms of respective loan as at reporting date , The company has not defaulted in any loan payable_ 

Undrawn borrowing facility 

Disclosure of undrawn borrowing facilities (excluding non-fund based facilities) towards future projects to be executed by the Company is Rs 36,095 lakhs. 
(31 March 2023 is 36,100 Jakhs) 

2 Terms of repayment of Term loan and security details:-

N.1.tu~ of borrawingl' 

Loans from banks - Secured 

Tenn loan -Indian rupees - Unsecured 

Security 

First chnges by way of hypothecation of aJI the fixed assets 
/Movable assets projects book debts, operating cash flow, 
receivable, revenue whatever nature, uncalled capital, Projects 
bank account and Assignment of all the GR AIT\Titsar Bhatinda 
Highway Private Limited's right, insurance policies and interest 
under all the agreement related to the projects. pledge of 30% 
share of equity share of GR Amritsar Bhatinda Highway PriYate 
Limited 

RrP?vmient ~nd interest l¢nnS_ 

Repayment in 28 half-yearly installment 
commence post completion of moratorium 
period post COD ranging from 2.50% to 4.753 
of loan taken, along with monthly interest rate 
ol 8.95% pa 

10 . .50 % for the year 2023-24 (10% for the year 
2022-23), the same shall be determined on a 
yearly basis as per the cost of funds of the 
Parent Company. Repayble from the cash flows 
available after meeting the senior debt 
obligation, in line with the waterfall mechanism 
as per described under the Concession 
Agreement / Common Loan Agreement and 
Escrow Agreement, 
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l1 Trade payables 

Particulars 

Total outslanding dues of 

Micro and small enterprises (MSMED) 

Creditors other than micro and small enterprises 

Trade Payables Ageing Schedule 

As at 31 March 2024 

Unbilled 

Ref Note No. 

Outstanding for the following periods 
frou\ the d ue dall'! of p-a.ymcn1 

Less than 1 year 1-2 2-3 

Due of micrn and small enterprises (MSMED) 
Due of cri:ditors other than micro and small enterprises 
Disputed dues of MSMED 
Disputed dues of creditors other than MSMED 

Total 

"1S 
4848 

48.66 

5,82617 

5,826.17 

YUni 

Outstanding for the following periods 
from lhC' due date of payme.nl 

As at 31 March 2023 
Unbilled 

Less than 1 year 1-2 2-3 

Due of micro and small enterprises (!\.tSMED) 
Due of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 
Disputed dues of MSMED 
Disputed dues of creditors other than MSMED 

Total 

Notes:-

0.10 
1.03903 

1,039.13 

a) Trade payable are non interest bearing and generally have credit period of 30-90 days 

b) For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer Note 21 

c) Total outstanding dues of Micro and small enterprises 

Trade payables 
Payable to related parties 

Details of Dues to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006 

{'arti.cul.ilJ".f" 
i) The principal amount remammg unpaid lO any supplier at the end of each accounting year; 

1.107-18 

1,107.18 

11) The interest due thereon remaming unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year; 

m) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in tenns of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the 
Ju+,Plk'r beyond the appointed day dwing each accounting year 

iv) The amount of interes t due and payable for the period o( delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during 
the )'t:ilT) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006. 

v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year 

vi) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are 
111ctw:. II:-i paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006 

<in l.nld1s 
As at As at 

311\Lmh 2024 31 March 2023 

018 

5,874 65 
5,874 83 

Morethan3 .. "' 

More than3 
Vt"iU'I 

As at 

010 

2,146.21 
2.146 31 

Total 

O.lS 
5,874 65 

5.674.83 

Total 

010 
2,146 21 

2,146.31 

As at 

31 March 2024 31 March 2ll23 
~in Llkl1s (in Lnkltt' 

l JuLAIJ~ 

31 ~h.rc-h l02I 31 Morth 2023 
0.18 0.10 

The disclosure in respect of the amount payable to enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and which qualify under the definition of micro and small 
enterprises, as defined under Micro, Small and Med.iwn Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been made in the standalone financial statemenls as at the reporting date based on the 
information received and available with the Company. 

12 Other financial Liabilities 

Particulars 

Empta~' L."t! rcltttt!d hab1\1b.:s 

13 Other CWYent liabilities 

Particulars 

Statutory dues 
TDS payable 
GSTpayable 

Ref Note No. 

Ref Note No. 

~in Llkl1s 

?'in l.JlkJ1s 
As at As at 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

0.35 
0.35 

As at As at 
31 March 2024 31 March 20.23 

116.42 

llb.42 

33.21 
1.5L'!6 
1 07 



GR AMRITSAR BATHINDA HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2024 

14 Revenue from operations 

(in Lakhs 

Particulars Ref Note No. For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Revenue from contracts with customers 16,140.77 2,122.47 

Finance income 3,963.24 

20,104.01 2,122.47 

15 Other income 

<in Lakhs 

Particulars Ref Note No. For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Interest income 

- on Mobilisation advances to parent company 146.12 
- from others 1.60 

147.72 

16 Civil construction costs 

(in Lakhs 

Particulars Ref Note No. For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

GvD sub-contract charges 15,764.89 2,010.06 

Labour charges and Jabour cess 114.55 20.01 

15,879.44 2,030.07 

17 Employee Benefits Expenses 

Particulars Ref Note No. For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Salaries and Wages 1.69 
1.69 

18 Finance costs 
<in Lakhs 

Particulars Ref Note No. For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Interest on Borrowing 
- others 18.59 
-To bank 0.22 

Other Borrowing Costs 6.00 
6.22 18.59 

19 Other expenses 

(in Lakhs 

Particulars Ref Note No. For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Business support expenses 89.83 
Legal and professional charges 25.06 61.11 
Payment to auditors (refer note (i) below) 0.26 0.20 
Independent engineers fees 67.55 
Insurance expenses 65.69 31.00 
Bank charges 0.10 0.03 
Other expenses 4.74 
Annua 1 custody fees 0.40 0.05 

253.63 92.39 

(i) Payment to auditors 

(in Lakhs 

Particulars Ref Note No. For the year ended For the year ended 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Payment to auditors (exclusive of GST) 

- Statutory audit 020 0.20 
- Certification fee 0.06 

0.26 0.20 



GR AMRITSAR BATHINDA HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2024 

20 Tax expense 

The major component of income tax expenses for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as under: 

A. 

B. 

c. 

D. 

Income tax (income)/ expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

Current tax 

Current tax on profit for the period 

Deferred tax 
Attributable to-

Origination and reversal of temporary differences (refer note D) 

Income tax expense r:eported in statement of profit and loss 

Reconciliation of tax expenses and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate: 

Profit before tax 

Tax using the Company's statutory tax rate 

Adjustment :-

Others 

Tax expense 

Deferred tax balance disclosed in Balance Sheet 

As on 31 March 2024 

Particulars 

Difference in carrving value and tax base of financial assets receivable 

Net deferred tax (assets)/ liabilities 

As on 31 March 2023 

Particulars 

Di££ereiice in carrying value and tax base of finandai assets rcCci\'uble 

Net deferred tax (assets)/ liabilities 

Deferred tax 
(assets) 

Deferred tax 
(assets) 

(5.03) 

(5.03) 

The movement in deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) during the year ended March 31 are give below: 

As on 31 March 2024 

Particulars 

Difference in carrying value and tax base of flnand. I assets receivable 

As on 31 March 2023 
Particulars 

Difference in carrying value and tax base of fi nancial assets receivable 

Unused tax losses 

Balance as at 
1April2022 

(5.03) 

(5.03) 

Balance as at 
1 April2022 

(0.35) 

(in Lakhs 

For the year ended For the year ended 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

0.40 

1, 034.54 (4.68) 

1,034.94 14.68} 

(in La.khs 

For the year ended For the year ended 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

4.110.75 (18.58) 

l,034.59 (4.68) 

035 
1,034.94 (4.68) 

i! in La.khs 
Deferred tax Net deferred tax 

liabilities (assets)/ liabilities 

1.029.51 1.029.51 

1,029.51 1,029.51 

(in La.khs 

Deferred tax Net deferred tax 
liabilities (assets)/ liabilities 

(5.03) 

(5.03) 

i! in La.klis 
Recognised in Balance as at 
profit or loss 31 March 2023 

during the period 

1,034.54 1,029.51 

l,034.54 1,029.51 

i!in Lak/is 
Recognised in Balance as at 
profit or loss 31 March 2023 

during the period 

(5.03) {5.03) 

0.35 

(5.03) 



GR AMRITSAR BATHINDA HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2024 

21 Related party disclosure 

A. Related parties with whom the company had transactions during the period 

(a) Parent company: 
GR lnfraprojects Limited 

(b) Key Management Personnel ("KMP"): 
Mr. Anand Rathi - Director 
Mr. Sudhir Mutha - Director 
Mr. Vishal Sen- Company Secretary w.e.f. 06.11.2023 
Ms. Prema Porwal- CEO & CFO w .e.f 06.11.2023 

B. Related party transactions with Parent Company and its closing balances 

Nature of transaction 

(a) Loan received 
(i) GR lnfraprojects Limited 

(b) Perpetual Debt received 
(i) G R Infraprojects Limited 

(c) Share Capital issued 
(i) GR Wraprojects Limited 

( d) Gvil construction costs 
(i) G R lnfraprojects Limited 

(e) Interest paid on unsecured loan 
(i) GR lnfraprojects Limited 

(f) Mobilisation Advances given 
(i) GR Infraprojects Limited 

(g) Mobilisation Advances repaid 
(i) GR Infra projects Limited 

(h) Interest received on Mobilisation Advances 
(i) GR Infraprojects Limited 

(i) Business support services 
(i) G R Wraprojects Limited 

Particulars 

(a) Loan payable 
(i) GR Jnfraprojects Limited 

(b) Perpetual debt payable 
(i) G R lnfraprojects Limited 

(c) Trade payable 
(i) G R Infraprojects Limited 

(d) Mobilisation advances receivable 
(i) GR Wraprojects Limited 

C. Transactions with key manag<!ment personnel and their cloSing balances: 
Nature of b'ansactfon 

(a) Remuneration 
(i) Vishal Sen 

Particulars 

(a) Remuneration payable 
(i) Vishal Sen 

C. Terms & Condition with Related Party 

fin Lak/Js 

Transaction value Transaction value 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

128.34 

3,859.83 

2,314.00 

15,764.89 2010.06 

18.59 

2,946.06 

295.00 

146.12 

89.83 

Balance outstanding rece.ivable/(payable) 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

259.53 

4,119.36 

5,866.23 2,141.67 

2,782.57 

Transaction value 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

1.69 

Balance outstanding receivable/payable 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

0.35 

i) The terms and conditions of the transactions with key management personnel and their related parties were no more favourable than those 
available, or those which might reasonably be expected to be available, in respect of similar transactions with non-key management personnel 
related entities on an arm's length basis. 

ii) The transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstanding balances at 
the year-end are unsecured and interest free except loan taken and settlement occurs in cash as per the terms of the agreement. 

iii) The Remuneration disclosed above given to "Company Secretary" is mainly related to short term employee benfits and does not includes post 
employee benefits as the same is not material and hence not disclosed separately. 

iv) 



GR AMRITSAR BATHINDA HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 
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22 Fair Value Measurements 

A. Accounting classification and fair values 

As at :n March 2024 

Particulars 

Cash and cash equivalents 

T ol..J Financial assets 

Borrowings 

Trade payable 
Othl'r financial liabilities 

Tota l Financial liabilities 

FVTPL 

. 

-
-
-
. 

FVOCI 
Amortised 

cost 

. 3,201.47 

- 3,201.47 

- 5.00 

- 5,874.83 

035 
. 5,880.18 

Total 

3,201.47 

3,201.47 

5.00 

5,874.83 

0.35 

5,880.18 

Fair Value 
Level 1 - Level 2 • Level 3- Total 
Quoted Significa Significant 
price in nt unobservable 
active observab inputs 

markets le inputs 
. . . 

. . . . 

. . . 

. . . 

- . -
- . - -

As at 31 March 2023 ? in Lakhi;; 

Fair Votlu.e 

Amortised 
Level 1 · Level 2· Level 3- Total 

Puticulars FVTPL FVOCI Total Quoted Significa Significant 
cost 

price in nt unobservable 
active observab inputs 

Cash and cash equivalents - 0.40 0.40 - - - -
Totlll Financial assets . - 0.40 0.40 - - - -
8ort0\\~ngs . 259.53 259.53 - - . 
Trade payable - - 2,146.31 2,146.31 . . 
Total Financial liabilities - 2,405.84 2,405.84 - -

*FVTPL= Fair value through profit and loss 

-FVOCI =Fair value through other comprehensive income 

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities included in the level 2 category above has been determined in accordance with generally accepted 
pricing models based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties_ 

There have been no transfers between level 1 and level 2 during the years. 

Valuation technique used to determine fair value: 
• Inputs included in Level 1 of Fair Value Hierarchy are based on prices quoted in stock exchange and/ or NAV declared by the Funds. 
• Inputs included in Level 2 of Fair Value Hierarchy have been valued based on inputs from banks and other recognised institutions. 
•Inputs included in Level 3 of Fair Value Hierarchy have been valued using acceptable valuation techniques such as Net Asset Value and/or Discounted Cash 
Flow Method. 
Note: All financial in.strnments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value hierarchy described as above, based on the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole. 

23 Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies 

The Company's financial liabilities comprise mainly of borrowings, trade and other payables. The Companf s financial assets comprise mainly of cash and cash 
equivalents and other receivables. 

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The 
Company is exposed to credit risk primarily trade receivables and other financial assets including deposits with banks. The Company's exposure and credit 
ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions is reasonably spread amongst the counterparties. 

A. Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices-wHI affect the company's income or the 
value of its holdings of financial instrnments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments. 

B. Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The 
company is exposed to credit risk primarily trade receivables and other financial assets including deposits with banks. The company's exposure and credit 
ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions is reasonably spread amongst the counterparties. 

The carrying amount of following financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure: 

Other financial assets 
This comprises mainly of construction asset receivable - Receivable under service concession agreements , deposits with banks . Credit risk arising from these 
construction assets is limited and there is no co1\ateral held against these because the counterparties are NHAl. 

C. Currency risk 
The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees ("Rs.'). The Company is not exposed to foreign currency risk. 



GR AMRITSAR BATHINDA HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2024 

D. Interest rate risk 
Tnteres t rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctu ate because of changes in market interest rates. The 

Company is exposed to interest rate risk resulting from fluctuations in interes t rates. Company's borrowing includes loan taken Joan from banks or fo1ancial 
institution & unsecured loan from Parent Company. Summary of financial assets and financial Jiabilities has been provided below: 

Exposure to interest rate risk 
The interes t rate profile of the Company's interest - bearing financial instrument as reported to management is as follows: 

Fixed-rate instruments 
Financial assets 
Financial liabilities 

Variable-rate instruments 
Financial assets 
Financial liabilities 

Interest rate sensitivity 

31 March 2024 

5.00 

? in Lak/J~ 

31 March 2023 

259,53 

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/ lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of change in interest rates. The foUowing tabfo demonstrates the 
sensitivity of floatin g ra te financial instruments to a reasonably possible change in interest rates. The risk estimates provided assume a parallel shift of 100 basis 
paints interes t rate across all yield curves. This calculation also assu mes that the change occurs at the balance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk 
exposures outstanding as at tha t date, The year end balances are not necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding during the period. 

Sensitivity analysis 
Particulars 

Interest rate 
- increase by 100 basis points 
- decrease by 100 basis points 

E. Liquidity risk 

mpact on profit before t.a 
31 March 2024 

'!'in Lakl1s 
(0 OS) 
005 

tin Lakhs 

Impact on profit before tax 
31 March 2023 

'!'in Lnkhs 
(2.60) 
2,60 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company wi11 encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by 
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to a1anaging liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to 
meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's 
reputation. The Company invest in liquid mutual funds to meet the immediate obligations. 

Exposure to liquidity risk 

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date The amounts arc gross and undiscounted. 

( itt Lakhs 

31 March 2024 Carrying Contractual cash flows 
amount Total Less than 1-5 years More than 5 years 

1 

Borrowin!!;S (incl. current maturities) # 500 5 00 5 00 
Trade payables 5,874.83 5,874.83 5,874.83 
Other current financial liabilities 0,35 0.35 0.35 
Total 5,879.83 5,879.83 5.874.83 5.00 

31 March 2023 Carrying Contrachlal cash flows 
amount Total Less than 1-Syears More than 5 years 

1 

Borrowings (incl. current maturities}# 259.53 259.53 259.53 
Trade payables ::!,.1 46.31 2_ 116.31 2,14631 
Total 2.~05.84 ~405.84 2,146.31 259.53 

#Borrowing includes unamortised transaction cost paid to lenders on upfront basis and interest accrued. 
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24 Capital management 

25 

2 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes paid-up equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of 
the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, 
creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management monitors the return on capital, to equity share holders. 

The Company manages its capital structure and n1akes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial 
covenants. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the lenders to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the 
financial covenants of any interest bearing loans and borrowing during the year. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the 
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. TI1c Company monitors capital using Debt-Equity ratio, which is net debt 
divided by total equity. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and short-term deposits. 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 
<inLnklis ? in Lnkl&s 

Total borrowings 5.00 259.53 
Less: cash and cash equivalents 3.201.47 040 
Adjusted net debt -3,196.47 259.13 
Equity share capital 1.00 1 DO 
Other equity 3,060.86 (14 95) 
Total equity 3.061.86 (13.95) 

Adjusted net debt to equity ratio (1.04) (18.58) 

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 

Ratio 31 March 202c M areh 20 %change Reason for change 

Current Ratio (in times) 2.74 1.09 152.14% Due to increase in 
(Current assets/ Current liabilities) current assets & 

current liabilities 

Debt Equity Ratio (in times) 0.00 
(Total Debt/Total Equity) 
Total Debt= Debt comprises of current borrowings( including run:cnt maturities of long term 
borrowings), non current borrowings and interest nccruc.-d on borrovJi.ngs and excludes the 
perpetual debtg taken and outsl>!ndfni; from the hold ing company (GR Infra projects Limited). 
Total Equity (net worth) = Equit)' share capital+Othcr equity+ perpetual debtg taken from the 
holding company 

Debt Service Coverage Ratio (in times) 661 .89 0.00 
( (Earning before interest and tax and depreciation)/ (principal repayment of non-<:urrent 
borrowings (excluding repa)'menl of perpetual debt taken from the holding company) made 
during the period and finance costs) ) 

Return on equity ratio (%) 3239% -5.66% -672.31 % Due to increase in 
(Profit for the period or year / Net worth) net worth 
(Net Worth: Equity share capital+Other equity+ perpetual debt taken and outstanding from the 
holding company) 
Inventory tum.over ratio ( in times) NA NA NA NA 
(Revenue from operation (annualised)/ Average Inventory) 

Trade receivables turnover ratio (in times) 3.54 177 100.48% Due to increase in 
(Revenue from operation (annualised)/ Average account receivable) revenue 
(Average account receivab]e =Average trade receivables+ average contract assets) 

Trade payables turnover ratio (in times) 3.93 1.87 110.27% Due to increase in 
(Purchases made during the year (annualised)/ Average account payable) civil costs 

Net capital turnover ratio (in times) 1.93 10.58 -81.76% Due to increase in 
(Revenue from operation (annualised) /working capital) revenue & working 
(Working capital= Current assets - Current liabilities) capital 

Net profit ratio (%) 15.30% --0.65% -2436.17% Due to increase in 
(Profit/(Ioss) for the period/Revenue from operations) revenue 

Return on capital employed(%) 39.10% 0.00% 
(Profit before intrest and taxes for the period or year / Capital employed) 
(Capital employed =Total assets - Current liabilities) 

Return on Investment (%) NA NA NA NA 
(Income generated from investment / Cost of investment) 

Previous Year 

Total Debt= Debt comprises of current borrowings( including current maturities of long term borrowings), non current borrowings and interest accrued on borrowings and excludes the 
unsecured borrowing taken and outstanding from the holding company (GR Jnfraprojects Limited). 

Total Equity (net worth)= Equity share capital+Other equity+ unsecured borrowing taken from the holding company 
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26 Disclosure pursuant to appendix E of Ind AS US for Service Concession Arrangements 

Name of Description of the arrangement Significant terms of the arrangement 
entity 

GR The Company is formed as a special purpose vehicle Period of concession: 2022-2040 
AMRITSAR (SPV) to design, build, operate and transfer basis, 
BATHINDA ("DBOT Annuity"or " Hybrid Annuity ") the projecl Remuneration : 40% during construction period and 

HIGHWAY relating to Construction of Development of six-lane balance 60% in half yearly annuity in 15 years as per 

PRIVATE Amritsar-Bathinda Greenfield Section on NH-754A concession agreement 

LIMITED from village Tiba on NE-SA to Junction with Moga-
Jahmdhur Road (NH-703) near Dharamkot (from km Investment grant horn concessjon granter :No 

0+000 to km 39+000) as part of Amritsar-Jamanagar Infrastructure return at the end of concession period 

Economic Corridor in the State of Punjab on Hybrid Yes 

Aruiui ty Mode under Bhartrnala Pariyojna in the state 
Investment and renewal obligations: Nil of Punjab which shall be partly financed by the 

Concessionaire who shall recover its investment and Re-pricing dates: No 

cosls through payment to be made by the authority, Basis upon which re-pricing or re-negotiation is 

in accordance with the terms and condition to be set determined : NA 

in concession agreement to be entered into. Premium payable to grantor : Nil 

Notes: 

(in Laklts 

Annuity receivable from 
concession granter 

(including Contract assets 
receivables) 

31 March 2024" 

8958.14 

31 March 2023 

2392,53 

Operation and maintenance ( O&M) cost per year consist of first year amount which is specified under concession agreement and installment of·subsequent year O&M 
shall be adjusted with the price index multiple on the reference index date preceeding the due date of payment thereof 
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27 Disclosures pursuant to Indian Accounting standard (Ind AS) 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

A. Disaggregated revenue information 

i) Type of service rendered 

Sale of services 

Total 

ii) Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated based on geography 

India 

Outside India 

Total 

iii) Timing of Revenue recognition 

Revenue from goods and services transferred to customers at a point in time 

Revenue from goods and services transferred to customers over time 

Total 

B. Contract balances: 

For the year ended 

31 March 2024 

20,104.01 

20,104.01 

20,104 01 

20,104.01 

20,104.01 

20,104.01 

The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities from the contracts with customers. 

Trade receivables 

Opening balance 

Closing balance 

The increase / decrease in trade receivables is mainly due to increase / decrease in sales. 

Annuity receivable from concession grantor (including Contract assets receivables) 

As at 

31 March 2024 

(in Lnklzs 

For the year ended 

31 March 2023 

2,122.47 

2,122.47 

2,122.47 

2,122.47 

2,122.47 

2,122.47 

(in Lnklzs 

As at 

31 March 2023 

Opening balance 2,392.53 9.92 

Oosing balance 8,958.14 2,392.53 

Contract assets/ financial assets (annuity receivable from concession grantor) are recognised as per Appendix D to Ind AS 115, when the Company has an 
unconditional right to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the granter for the construction services. 

Contract liabilities 

Opening balance 

Oosing balance 
Contract liabilities include advance from customers and transaction price allocated to unexpired service obligations 

C. The amount of revenue recognized from 

- Performance obligations satisfied in previous years 

-Amounts induded in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year 

D. Performance obligation 

i) Sales of Services: 

For the year ended 

31 March 2024 

(in Lakhs 

For the year ended 

31 March 2023 

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as the assets is under control of customer and they simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits 
provided by the Company. The Company received progressive payment toward provision of services. 

E. Reconciliation of the amount for revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss with the contracted price: i in U1k'1s 

Revenue as per contracted price 

Adjustments 

Claims 

Variable consideration - performance bonus 

Revenue from contract with customers 

28 Earnings per share 

Particulars 

Face value per equity share (in Rs.) 

(a) Profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders 

(b) Number of equity shares at the beginning of the period 

(c) Equity shares issued during the period 

(d) Number of equity shares at the end of the period 

(e) Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating basic EPS 

(f) Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating diluted EPS 

Earnings Per Share (in Rs.): 

Note: 

Basic earning per share (a/ e) 

Diluted earning per share (a/f) 

~F~o-r-t~h-e_y_e_ar~e-n-d-ed~~--=F~o-r-th~e~y-ear~e-n-d~e-d,,..-~ 

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

20,104.01 2,122.47 

20,104.01 

31 March 2024 

10.00 

3,075.81 

10,000.00 

2,31,40,000.00 
2,31,50,000 

1,32,87,049 18 

1,32,87,049.18 

2315 

23.15 

2,122.47 

(in Lnkhs 

31 March 2023 

10.00 

(13.90) 

10,000.00 

10,000 

10,000.00 

10,000.00 

(139 00) 

(139.00) 

Weighted average number of equity shares is the number of equity shares outstlln ding at the beginning of the year nd 
the number of · c shares are 



GR AMRITSAR BATHINDA HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED 
Notes to the financial statements (continued) 
for the year ended 31 March 2024 

29 Segment reporting 

Basis for segmentation 

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108 - "Segment Reporting 11
, the Company is primarily engaged in a business of civil construction and has no 

other primary reportable segments. The Director of the Company allocate the resources and assess the perfonnance of the Company, thus he is the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM monitors the operating results of the business as a single segment, hence no separate segment needs to be 
disclosed. 

Information about geographical areas 
As the Company operates in India only, hence no separnte geographical segment is disclosed. 

Infonnation about major customers 

Revenue of Rs 20104.01 lakhs are derived from single customer (NHAI) which amow1ts to 10% or more of the Company's revenue. 

30 Contingent liabilities and commitments 

A Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for) 

(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts 

(i) Indirect tax matters 

(ii) Direct tax matters 

(b) Guarantees excluding financial guarantees : 

Guarantees given to third parties 

Total 

B Commitments 

(a) Capital Commitments 

31 Other Statutory Information 

Asal 

31 March 2024 

56,704.88 

i!in Lakhs 

As at 

31 March 2023 

70,689.94 

(i) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami 
property. 

(ii) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off. 
(iii) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year. 
(iv) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) ·with the 

understanding that the Intermediary shall: 
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate 

Beneficiaries) or 
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

(v) The Company have not received any fund from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: 
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 

(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 
(b) provide any guarantee, security or tl1e like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries, 

(vi) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during 
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 
1961). 

(vii) The Company do not have any immovable property so requirements related to disclosure of "title deed not being held in the name of the company" is 
not applicable to the Company. 

(viii) The Company is not required to file quarterly returns/statements with the banks and financial institutions. 

32 Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified whenever necessary to confirm this year1s classiflcation. 
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